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NOTICE OF MEETING

notice is hereby given that the twenty second annual General Meeting of Browns Beach hotels Plc will 
be held at the Institute of chartered accountants of sri lanka, 30a, Malalasekara Mawatha, colombo 07 
at 3.30 p.m. on tuesday, september 30, 2014, for the following purposes:-

•	 to receive and consider the annual report of the Board of Directors together with the Financial 
statements of the company and the report of the auditors’ thereon for the year ended 31st March 
2014.

•	 to re-elect Mr. t D U D Peiris who retires by rotation in terms of article 85 of the articles of 
association of the company, as a Director.

•	 to re-elect Mr. D h s Jayawardena who is over the age of 70 years, as a Director by passing the 
following resolution.

 “that the age limit stipulated in section 210 of the companies act no. 7 of 2007 shall not apply to 
Mr. D h s Jayawardena who has attained the age of 72 years and that he be re-elected a Director of 
the company.”

•	 to re-elect Mr. M V theagarajah who is over the age of 70 years, as a Director by passing the 
following resolution.

 “that the age limit stipulated in section 210 of the companies act no. 7 of 2007 shall not apply to 
Mr. M V theagarajah who has attained the age of 82 years and that he be re-elected a Director of the 
company.”

•	 to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs. KPMG, chartered accountants and authorise the 
Directors to determine their remuneration.

•	 to consider any other business of which due notice has been given.

By order of the Board

R.E.V. Casie Chetty
Director
Aitken Spence Corporate Finance (Private) Limited
Secretaries

28th august, 2014
colombo 

Note:-  

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend, speak and vote in 
his/her stead and a Form of Proxy is enclosed for this purpose. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. The completed form of proxy should be deposited with the Secretaries of the Company at their office, No.315, 
Vauxhall Street, Colombo 02 before 3.30 p.m on September 28, 2014 being 48 hours before the time appointed 
for the holding of the meeting.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Name
Browns Beach hotels Plc

Subsidiary Company
negombo Beach resorts (Private) limited

(Proposed new Beach hotel)

Legal Form
a Public Quoted company with limited liability
(Incorporated in sri lanka on 04th august 1992)

Company Registration Number
PQ 202

Directors
Deshamanya D. h. s. Jayawardena - chairman
M. V. theagarajah F.c.M.a., F.c.I.a.a., F.I.Mgt.

J. M. s. Brito llB., Fca., MBa.
s. M. hapugoda F.c.I.M. (UK)

t. D. U. D. Peiris
a.l. Gooneratne Fca

Secretaries
aitken spence corporate Finance (Private) limited

315, Vauxhall street, colombo 02.
tel: (9411) 2308308
Fax: (9411) 2308099

Registered Office
315, Vauxhall street, colombo 02.

Hotel
175, lewis Place, negombo.

tel: (9431) 2222076

Auditors
Messrs. KPMG.,

chartered accountants
32a, sri Mohamad Macan Markar Mawatha,

P. o. Box 186, colombo 03. 

Bankers
hatton national Bank Plc
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

on behalf of the Board of Directors, I have pleasure in presenting the annual report and Financial 
statements of your company for the financial year ended 31st March 2014.

TOURISM OVERVIEW
sri lanka’s tourism for 2013 exceeded the target of 1.25 million tourists to reach 1.27 million arrivals, 
which shows the growing popularity of the destination in the eye of the global traveler. For sri lanka 
1.27 million arrivals is a record arrivals figure and one that foretells the arrival of 2.5 million tourists by 
2016. accordingly, earnings from tourism during 2013 recorded a year-on-year growth of 35 percent to 
UsD 1.4 billion, compared with cumulative earnings of UsD 1 billion in 2012.

DEVELOPMENT & PROSPECTS
construction work of the new hotel continued during the year and it is expected to be operational during 
the financial year 2014/15. the resort upon completion will be re-branded as “heritance negombo” the 
latest addition to the heritance portfolio and will comprise of 143 rooms. It will be an up market, state-
of-the-art property with all modern amenities and will cater to multiple segments of clients including 
leisure, business and tourist travelers.

During the financial year, Browns Beach hotels Group reported a profit after tax of rs. 93.2 million 
mainly on the interest income earned from the investments of the funds raised from the rights Issue.

CONCLUSION
I wish to thank my fellow Directors on the Board and Management company, aitken spence hotel 
Managements (Pvt) ltd. for their guidance and advice particularly on the construction phase of the 
hotel and on the way forward for the company. 

I also wish to thank all our stake holders for their support in the past and I am confident that we would 
receive their total support in the future, to make this project a success.

D.h.s. Jayawardena
chairman
28th august 2014
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Deshamanya 
D. H. S. Jayawardena

Deshamanya harry Jayawardena 
is one of sri lanka’s most 
successful businessmen and 
heads many successful enterprises 
in very diverse fields of activity. 
he is the Founder Director and 
current chairman/Managing 
Director of the stassen Group of 
companies – a diversified group 
in exports and import trade, and 
the chairman of lanka Milk 
Foods (cwe) Plc. he is also 
the chairman of the Distilleries 
company of sri lanka Plc, 
lanka Bell (Pvt) ltd., Balangoda 
Plantations Plc, and Madulsima 
Plantations Plc. he is a former 
Director of hatton national Bank 
Plc., the largest listed bank in 
sri lanka. Mr. Jayawardena was 
the former chairman of ceylon 
Petroleum corporation and sri 
lankan airlines. Deshamanya 
Jayawardena is presently the 
honorary consul for Denmark 
and on the 9th of February 2010, 
he was knighted by her Majesty 
the Queen of Denmark with the 
prestigious honour of “Knight 
cross of Dannebrog”. he has 
also been awarded the title, 
“Deshamanya” in recognition of 
his services to the Motherland, 
since november 2005.

Mr. J. M. S. Brito

Mr. rajan Brito has a llB 
(University of london) and 
MBa (london city Business 
school) degrees and is a Fellow 
of both Institutes of chartered 
accountants of sri lanka and 
england & wales. together with 
this multi-disciplined knowledge, 
he also brings with him a wealth 
of 35 years of international 
experience working with a number 
of international organizations. 
Presently Mr. Brito is the Managing 
& Finance Director of aitken 
spence Plc., and the chairman 
of DFcc Vardhana Bank. he 
is a former chairman of DFcc 
Bank, sri lankan airlines, the 
employers’ Federation of ceylon 
and a former Director of sri lanka 
Insurance corporation.

Mr. M. V. Theagarajah

Mr. M. V. thegarajah is a fellow 
of the Institute of chartered 
Management accountants UK.he 
had his training in london 
transport, electrical Giant of 
Great Briton a e I and howard 
Management consultants, United 
states of america. he retired as 
chairman of the Browns Group 
of companies on 30th June 2006. 
he has over 45 years experience 
in commerce, Finance, Industry 
and Management. he has been a 
Director of Browns Beach hotels 
Plc since its inception.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - Contd.

Mr. S. M. Hapugoda

Mr. s. Malin hapugoda heads the 
hotel sector of the Group. he is 
a professional hotelier counting 
many years of managerial 
experience at senior level within 
several hotel companies and 
is an honorary Member (Past 
President) of the tourist hotels’ 
association of sri lanka and a 
Member of the tourism cluster 
of the national council for 
economic Development (nceD). 
he is a Fellow of the chartered 
Institute of Management, UK. 
he is a graduate of the sri lanka 
Institute of tourism & hotel 
Management (slIthM) and is 
a fellow and founder President 
of the ceylon hotel school 
Graduates association. he holds a 
diploma in hospitality, restaurant 
and institutional administration 
from the rayerson Institute of 
technology, toronto, canada.

Mr. T. D. U. D. Peiris

Mr. Upul Peiris is the chief 
operating officer of adaaran 
resorts in the republic of 
Maldives. he has graduated 
from the sri lanka Institute of 
tourism and hotel Management 
(slIthM) in 1984, and served at 
aitken spence hotels since 1989. 
he was the General Manager of 
neptune hotel, Meedhupparu 
Island resort and Browns Beach 
hotel. he was also the former 
Vice President of ceylon hotel 
school Graduates association and 
negombo hoteliers association.
Mr. Peiris has been a Director on 
the Board of Browns Beach hotels 
Plc since at 1st of July 2008.

Mr. A. L. Gooneratne

Mr. amitha Gooneratne has 
held several senior positions 
at commercial Bank of ceylon 
Plc and served as the Managing 
Director from 1997 to april 
2012. he is a Fellow member 
of the Institute of chartered 
accountants, england and 
wales and a Fellow member 
of the Institute of chartered 
accountants, sri lanka. he was 
the founder chairman of the 
Financial ombudsman sri lanka 
(Guarantee) ltd and was a former 
chairman of the sri lanka Bank’s 
association (Guarantee) ltd. he 
was also the Managing Director 
of commercial Development 
company Plc, and was also 
the chairman of commercial 
Insurance Brokers (Pvt) limited. 
he was also nominated to 
the Board of sri lankan air 
lines during 2002 - 2004 by the 
Government of sri lanka. on 
his retirement, Mr. Gooneratne, 
assumed duties as Managing 
Director of Melstacorp limited, 
which is a strategic investment 
arm of the Distilleries company 
of sri lanka Plc. he also joined 
the boards of several subsidiary 
companies of Melstacorp limited. 
he is also an Independent Director 
of textured Jersey lanka Plc, 
lanka Ioc Plc and commercial 
Development company Plc. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT

the company employs a structured approach in managing uncertainty and threats through a sequence 
of activities including risk assessment, risk evaluation and risk mitigation. the risk Management 
system is reviewed periodically to ensure adequacy and effectiveness.

there are several key risks to which the company is exposed due to our business activities. the 
assessment of such risks, impact and related responses are as follows.

During the Financial year construction work of the new hotel continued and therefore there were no 
hotel operations during the period under review.

Risk	 •	 Risks	from	breakdown	of	internal	controls,	processes	and	procedures.

Impact	 •	 High	potential	for	errors,	frauds	and	misstatements	in	the	affairs	of	the	Company.	

	 •	 Disturbance	to	the	normal	course	of	operation.

	 •	 Waste	of	management	time	which	could	have	been	devoted	to	other	strategic	plans	
of the business.

Our	Response	 •	 Periodically	 reviewing	 the	effectiveness	of	 the	 internal	 control	procedure	 system	
in the Group through investigations carried out by the corporate Internal audit 
Department, supplemented by regular management audits carried out by internal 
audit teams.

	 •	 Effective	controls	are	implemented	and	monitored	with	due	care	by	the	Management.

Risk	 •	 Failure	to	comply	with	statutory	requirements,	established	norms/trade	practices	
and safety issues.

Impact	 •	 Penalty	charges	and	negative	image	to	the	business.

	 •	 Legal	cases	filed	against	the	Group.

Our	Response	 •	 Cordial	relationships	are	maintained	with	regular	bodies	based	on	mutual	trust	and	
understanding.

	 •	 Continuously	monitoring	the	deadlines	to	be	achieved	on	statutory	payments	and	
statutory reporting of financial performances.

	 •	 Regular	workshops	on	health	and	safety	are	conducted	 to	ensure	 the	health	and	
safety of staff.
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RISK MANAGEMENT - Contd.

Risk	 •	 Risk	from	natural	or	man-made	disasters.

Impact	 •	 Loss	of	Assets	resulting	in	significant	losses	to	the	Group.

Our	Response	 •	 Transfer	of	risks	to	third	parties	via	insurance	policies	as	far	as	possible.

	 •	 The	 adequacy	 of	 the	 insurance	 cover	 is	 regularly	 reviewed	 and	 updated	 when	
necessary, assets are revalued to match the nearest market value and the insurance 
cover is enhanced accordingly in order to eliminate any possible risk of under 
insurance.

Risk	 •	 Risk	 of	 legal/judiciary	 action	 due	 to	 non	 performance	 of	 legal	 and	 statutory	
requirements.

Impact	 •	 High	cost	of	legal	and	penalty	fees	resulting	in	reduced	profitability.

Our	Response	 •	 Creating	 awareness	 about	 legal	 and	 statutory	 obligations	 at	 all	 levels,	 periodic	
assessment of contracts and expert advice is sought when entering into material 
contracts.

	 •	 The	Company	 recognizes	and	conforms	 to	 its	 responsibilities	as	a	public	quoted	
company, a tax payer and an employer.

Risk	 •	 Risk	of	negative	publicity	due	to	non-compliance	with	environmental	practices.

Impact	 •	 Possible	litigation	due	to	non-compliance.

Our	Response	 •	 The	Group	is	committed	to	best	environmental	practices	to	ensure	strict	compliance	
with local regulations.

	 •	 The	Group	has	taken	every	possible	step	to	be	in	line	with	the	standards	required	
by the local authorities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

corporate Governance signifies the manner in which companies are directed and controlled. Good 
governance is an essential ingredient in corporate success and sustainable economic growth. the 
Board of Directors of Browns Beach hotels Plc is committed to maintain high standards of integrity, 
accountability, transparency and business ethics in the governance of the Group.
the Group is primarily guided by the code of Best Practice on corporate Governance issued by the 
Institute of chartered accountants of sri lanka, the listing rules of the colombo stock exchange and 
other codes of Professional Institutes, chambers of commerce and Industry associations. the report 
below sets out the corporate Governance principles practiced by the organization. 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition and Balance
the Board comprises of six Directors including the chairman. the Board consists of three non 
executive Directors who are deemed to be independent. the Board having considered the criteria on 
independence as mentioned in the listing rules of the colombo stock exchange construed Mr. M.V. 
theagarajah and Mr. t. D. U. D. Peiris as independent as they refrain from any involvement in the day 
to day management of the company or its subsidiary. the Board further noted that Mr. t. D. U. D. Peiris 
is overseas.

Mr. a. l. Gooneratne although a Director of an institution which has a significant shareholding in the 
company is construed as independent by the Board after taking into consideration all the relevant 
circumstances including the fact that neither he nor the institution in which he is a Director are directly 
or indirectly involved in the day to day management of the company. the non executive Directors 
possess valuable knowledge and experience in all areas of the company’s operations.

Directors’ Decision Making
the Board regularly discusses and makes strategic decisions collectively on behalf of the Group. apart 
from taking decisions at Board Meetings, the Board also takes decisions via circular resolutions.
Board Meetings
Board meetings were held three times during this financial year and were presided by the chairman. 
any instances of non-attendance at the meetings were due to personal commitments or illness.
the Directors are provided with minutes, the agenda and the board papers giving them adequate time 
to study the contents prior to meetings.
The Responsibilities of the Board
the Board of Directors are responsible for; 
- Formulating business strategies taking into consideration the Group’s strengths, competencies and risks.
-  Implementing and monitoring of such strategies.
- reviewing and ratifying systems in operation relating to risk management, internal control, codes of 

conduct and compliance with appropriate laws, statutes and regulations.
-  reviewing, monitoring and ratifying all capital expenditure, acquisitions and divestitures.
-  Monitoring senior management performance.
-  ensuring that effective information and audit systems are in place.
-  ensuring that due attention is given to the annual and interim financial statements prior to publication.
-  Determining the quantum of the final dividend if any for approval by the shareholders.
-  approving and monitoring financial and operational reports.
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Obtaining Independent Professional Advice
the Board in discharging it’s duties seeks independent professional advice from external parties when 
necessary at the company’s expense. the day-to-day management of the company’s affairs has been 
entrusted to aitken spence hotel Managements (Pvt) ltd., the Managing agent, with whom a formal 
management contract has been signed.
Company Secretaries
all Directors have independent and joint access to the company secretaries who act in a professional 
manner. the company secretaries advice the Board on matters relating to the companies act, colombo 
stock exchange regulations and other applicable rules and regulations and ensure that appropriate, 
timely and accurate information is submitted to the Board and its committees.

Related Party Transactions
related party transactions are disclosed on pages 50 to 51 of the annual report.

Independent Judgment
each Director exercises independent judgment in all matters considered by the Board and acts free 
from any undue influence and bias from other parties. Matters considered include making decisions on 
issues relating to strategy, implementation of such strategies, performance review, resource allocation 
and standards of conduct and business ethics.

Chairman’s Role
the chairman of the Group is one of the most successful and experienced business leaders in sri lanka. 
the chairman provides leadership and strategic directions to the Board and ensures that all meetings 
are conducted in a professional manner.

the chairman encourages effective participation of all the Directors in decision making, seeks and 
ascertains the views of the Directors and thereby ensures that the Board functions in an efficient manner 
beneficial to the stakeholders of the Group.

Financial Acumen
the Board includes three senior Professional accountants who possess the necessary experience and 
expertise.

Provision of Supply of Information
the Group has a well developed, streamlined Management Information system in place. the Board is 
provided with timely and appropriate information by the management by way of board papers and 
proposals.

Appointments to the Board
there is a clear and transparent procedure for the appointment of Directors to the Board. Upon the 
appointment of a new director to the Board, the company informs the colombo stock exchange with a 
brief resume of such director containing the nature of his expertise, other directorships held, memberships 
in board committees and his independence/non independence. the articles of association of the 
company empower the Board of Directors to either fill a casual vacancy in the directorate or appoint 
additional Directors. the Directors so appointed hold office until the next annual General Meeting and 
are eligible for re-election.

Re-election of Directors
the company’s articles of association provide for one of the Directors to retire from office. retiring 
Directors are selected on the basis of those who have been longest in office since their last election. In 
the event there are one or more Directors appointed on the same date, the retiring Director shall be 
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determined either by agreement or by lot. a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. In order 
to ensure that the Board comprises of members who add value to the company, the Board evaluates 
the qualifications and contribution of each retiring Director before recommending such person for re-
election.

Appraisal of the Performance of the Board
the performance of each Director is regularly evaluated.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Disclosure of Remuneration
the total remuneration of the Directors is disclosed in note no. 25.2 to the Financial statements.
Level and Make-Up of Remuneration Packages
the Group believes that its success is mainly due to the efforts of its employees and has structured the 
remuneration packages in such a manner to attract, retain and motivate the best professional talent in 
the country. an attractive remuneration package in line with comparative industry levels is given to the 
senior Management cadre of the Group.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Long Term Shareholder Value
the company’s market price was at rs. 19.00 per share as at 31st March 2014 compared to rs. 17.20 per 
share as at 31st March 2013. the company’s market capitalisation is rs. 2,462,400,000 as at the date of 
the statement of financial position.

Constructive use of the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
the company welcomes active participation by its shareholders and allows opportunity for shareholder 
participation. the Board considers the aGM as an opportunity to communicate and maintain appropriate 
dialogue with its shareholders and welcomes their suggestions. It also enables shareholders to meet and 
discuss appropriate company matters with the Directors after the aGM.

Making Available Notice of Meeting and the Related Papers
the notice of the annual General Meeting and the relevant documents are published and dispatched to 
the shareholders at least 15 working days prior to the annual General Meeting as per the companies 
act no. 07 of 2007. the voting procedures at general meetings are circulated to the shareholders along 
with the annual report.

Major Transactions and their Impact on the Group’s Net Assets
During the financial year there were no major transactions, which materially altered the Group’s net 
asset base other than that disclosed in this annual report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Assessment of the Position and Prospects of the Company
the annual report of the Board of Directors and the statement of Directors’ responsibilities are 
presented on pages 16 and 19 respectively in this annual report. these reports provide a balanced and 
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

Maintaining a Sound System of Internal Control and Risk Management
the Board has implemented a sound system of Internal control and risk Management to safeguard the 
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. the Board is fully aware that Internal controls have 
inherent limitations and do not provide absolute assurance against errors and fraud. the details of the 
Group’s risk Management system are provided on pages 07 to 08 of this annual report.
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Periodical Review of the Adequacy and Effectiveness of Internal Controls
the adequacy and the effectiveness of the Internal controls are periodically reviewed by the Board and 
the senior Management of the Group and the observations are reported to the Board for appropriate 
action.

Financial Reporting
the Board of Directors confirms that the Financial statements of the Group have been prepared in 
accordance with the sri lanka accounting standards and the companies act no. 07 of 2007. the Group 
has duly complied with all the reporting requirements of the relevant laws and regulatory authorities. 
the Financial statements of the Group were audited by Messrs. KPMG, chartered accountants.

Statement by the Auditors about their Reporting Responsibilities
the auditors report on the Financial statements is presented on page 20 of this annual report.

Declaration by the Board as to whether the Business is a Going Concern
the relevant declaration is presented in the annual report of the Board of Directors on page 16 of this 
annual report.

Statutory Obligations 
the Directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief, are satisfied that all financial obligations due 
to the Government and to employees have been duly paid or adequately provided for in the Financial 
statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER STAKEHOLDERS
Employees
the Board ensures that the vision, goals and objectives formulated by the Board are clearly communicated 
and understood by all employees. this ensures goal congruence and the understanding by all employees 
of the strategic direction of the Group. all employees are aware of their responsibilities and duties 
and the Group strictly follows the International labour organisation (Ilo) convention with regard to 
employment. the Group ensures that no person below the minimum age is offered employment. the 
Group affords opportunities to potential employees regardless of gender, race, ethnicity and religion 
and once recruited would continue in their career path without discrimination. the code of ethics, 
which has been duly documented, is given to all executives of the Group who confirm their acceptance 
of same. Violation of the code of ethics is considered an offense, which is subject to disciplinary action.

Institutions and Regulatory Bodies.
the Board ensures that a meaningful relationship is maintained with institutions such as the relevant 
line Ministries, the central Bank of sri lanka, the Board of Investment of sri lanka, the registrar General 
of companies, the securities and exchange commission of sri lanka, the colombo stock exchange, 
the Department of Inland revenue, Professional and trade associations and various chambers of 
commerce. the Group’s operations and activities strictly adhere to the rules, regulations and codes of 
conduct set out by the relevant regulatory and advisory bodies and the appropriate laws of the country.

Environment
the Board is highly committed to the sustainability of the environment and therefore ensures that the 
Group pursues and adheres to the recommended standards so as to protect and promote the eco system. 
the practices adopted by the Group are recognised and rewarded by the relevant authorities and the 
awards bestowed upon the Group are the evidence of such adherence to environmental policies of the 
Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

In order to carry out the functions of the remuneration committee effectivelly and meaningfully the 
remuneration committee of aitken spence Plc acted as the remuneration committee of Browns Beach 
hotels Plc. Browns Beach hotels Plc is an associate company of aitken spence Plc. the Independent 
non- executive Directors of aitken spence Plc who acted as members of the remuneration committee 
were Mr. G. c. wickremasinghe (chairman), Mr. V. M. Fernando and Mr. r. n. asirwatham. the report of 
the remuneration committee is given below.
Composition of the Committee
the committee consists of Independent non-executive Directors and is also chaired by an Independent 
non-executive Director. 
Independence of the Committee
the committee is independent of the management and is totally free from any business, personal or 
other relationships that may interfere in making independent judgments.
Number of Committee Meetings
the committee formally met once during the year under review when all members were present.
Attendance by Invitation
the chairman and the Managing & Finance Director attended the meetings by invitation and contribute 
substantially in making recommendations.
Terms of Reference of the Committee
•	 recommending a remuneration policy for the Directors and the Management team,
•	 reviewing, monitoring and evaluating the performance of the Managing Directors, executive 

Directors, and the individual and collective performance of the Directors and the senior Management 
of the strategic Business Units,

•	 evaluating and recommending the individual remuneration packages of the Managing Directors, 
executive Directors and senior Management considering the skill, experience, level of responsibility, 
performance and industry norms,

•	 Determining a compensation package on termination of office of employees,
•	 executing duties within the framework of the principles of good governance.
Key functions performed during the year under review
•	 approved promotions after evaluating the performance of the Group, strategic Business Units and 

the contribution made by employees to their respective strategic Business Units.
•	 recommended revision of remuneration packages based on performance, cost of living and 

comparative industry norms.
Methodology of the Committee
the committee adopts a structured and unbiased methodology to evaluate employee performance 
to ensure equality among employees to prevent discrimination based on gender, age, ethnicity and 
religion.
The year ahead
the committee would continue to propose remuneration policies and practices to attract and retain 
suitable talent for performance enhancement.

G.c. wickremasinghe
chairman
remuneration committee
colombo
22nd May 2014
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

In order to make the audit committee effective and meaningful the audit committee of aitken spence 
Plc carried out the functions, duties and responsibilities of the audit committee of Browns Beach 
hotels Plc. Browns Beach hotels Plc is an associate company of aitken spence Plc. the Independent 
non- executive Directors of aitken spence Plc who acted as members of the audit committee were Mr. 
r. n. asirwatham (chairman), Mr. G. c. wickremasinghe, Mr. c. h. Gomez and Mr. n. J. de silva Deva 
aditya. the report of the audit committee is given below.

Composition of the Committee
the committee consists of Independent non- executive Directors and is also chaired by an Independent 
non-executive Director.

Number of Committee Meetings
the committee formally met five times during the year under review.

Attendance by Invitation
the Managing & Finance Director, chief Financial officer, chief corporate officer and chief Internal 
auditor attended the meetings by invitation. 

Summary of key terms of reference
Risk Management 
•	 ensuring that the Group’s internal controls and risk management systems are adequate
•	 ensuring that the business is conducted in accordance with the relevant laws of the country, 

international laws and codes of regulatory authorities, professional institutes and trade associations 

Financial Reporting and Financial control
•	 reviews the operational and any other management information reports submitted to the committee
•	 reviews the Group quarterly and annual financial statements that are prepared in strict compliance 

with the companies act no. 7 of 2007, sri lanka accounting standards currently applicable and the 
requirements of any other regulatory bodies as applicable

•	 evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the Groups accounting policies and all proposed changes 
in accounting policies and practices

External Audit
•	 Reviews	and	approves	the	external	audit	plan	presented	by	the	External	Auditors
•	 Reviews	and	monitors	the	progress	of	the	external	audit
•	 Reviews	the	management	letter	issued	by	the	External	Auditors,	and	ensures	that	the	management	

takes appropriate action to satisfactorily resolve issues 
•	 Assesses	the	independence	and	effectiveness	of	the	External	Auditors	on	an	annual	basis
•	 Reviews	the	fees	proposed	by	the	External	Auditors	and	makes	recommendations	to	the	Board	on	

their re-appointment which is subject to approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual 
General Meeting which will be effective until the conclusion of the succeeding annual General 
Meeting

Internal Audit
•	 reviews, approves and monitors the internal audit plan
•	 reviews the financial and operational audit reports, It security reports and risk reports of the 

Internal auditors’ and the Management’s response to same
•	 evaluates the independence and effectiveness of the internal audit functions
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Summary of key focus areas in the year ended 31st March 2014

•	 reviewed the risk Management system and highlighted the areas which required attention,
•	  reviewed the operational and any other management information reports submitted to the 

committee,
•	  reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements submitted by the Group to the colombo 

stock exchange, and recommended improvements in the content and presentation,
•	  evaluated significant accounting issues and recommended appropriate action wherever necessary,
•	  reviewed, approved, monitored and suggested necessary changes to the external audit and internal 

audit plans,
•	  reviewed and ensured the adequacy of the Group’s internal controls and recommended corrective 

measures where necessary,
•	  Discussed the reports of the Internal auditors, considered the response from the Management and 

suggested suitable action,
•	  assessed the performance of the Internal auditors and set out guidelines for the effective discharge 

of duties,
•	  assessed the independence of external auditors,
•	  evaluated the performance of external auditors,
•	  reviewed the fees and out of pocket expenses proposed by the external auditors and made 

recommendations to the Board.

Re-appointment of Auditors
the audit committee having evaluated the performance of the external auditors decided to recommend 
to the Board the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG, chartered accountants as the auditors of the 
company for the current year, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual 
General Meeting.

r.n. asirwatham
chairman
audit committee
colombo 
22nd May 2014

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT - Contd.
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

the Board of Directors has pleasure in presenting the annual report together with the audited 
consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 at the twenty second annual 
General Meeting of the company to be held on 30th september 2014.

REVIEW OF THE YEAR AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
the chairman’s review describes in detail the year’s operations together with the future developments 
of the Group. Please refer Page 04 for the chairman’s review.

THE PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY OF THE GROUP
the principal activity of the companies in the Group is hoteliering and there has been no change in the 
nature of activities during the year. Browns Beach hotel ceased its operations on 31st March 2011 to 
facilitate the construction of a new resort. the construction work of the new resort which commenced 
in May 2012 is still in progress.
negombo Beach resorts (Pvt) ltd a fully owned subsidiary of Browns Beach hotel Plc is currently 
engaged in the construction of the proposed new hotel.

INTERNAL CONTROLS
the Board of Directors accepts ultimate responsibility for the Group’s system of internal controls. the 
systems are geared to provide with reasonable assurance that the assets of the Group are safeguarded 
and that all transactions are relevant, properly authorized and duly recorded.
the Group’s system of internal controls is detailed in the statement of corporate Governance and 
statement of Directors’ responsibilities on pages 09 and 19 respectively. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
the Board of Directors has ensured to maintain an effective corporate Governance structure and 
processes. the operations of the company and its subsidiary are effectively directed and controlled 
within the corporate Governance frame outlined on pages 09 to 12.

RISK MANAGEMENT
the Board and executive Management of the Group have put in place a comprehensive risk 
identification, measurement and mitigation process. a detailed overview of the process is outlined in 
the risk Management report on pages 07 to 08 of this report.

GOING CONCERN
the Board is satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to continue its operations in the foreseeable 
future, thus adopting the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.

EMPLOYMENT POLICY
Due to construction of the proposed new hotel the services of the hotel staff were terminated on 31st 
March 2011 with a Voluntary retirement scheme approved by the commissioner of labour. there were 
11 employees remaining as at the year end.
as a socially responsible “equal opportunity employer” our recruitment and employment policies are 
non-discriminatory. the Group is also committed to the development and utilization of skills of the 
local labour force.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY
the Group is committed to environmental conservation and minimizing any adverse impact resulting 
from its operations. In order to monitor and manage the environmental and social performance of the 
hotel, a formal environmental Management system has been established.

CORPORATE DONATIONS
there were no political or other donations granted during the year.
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - Contd.

REVENUE AND PROFITS
  Group
For the year ended 31st March   2014 2013
   Rs. ’000 Rs. ’000    
the net profit after providing for all expenses, known liabilities and
 depreciation on property, plant and equipment    136,366 263,636
Provision for taxation including deferred tax    (43,117)   (75,892)     
net profit after tax    93,249  187,744
other comprehensive income    442  –     
total comprehensive income for the year    93,691 187,744
total comprehensive income attributable to the minority shareholders  –  –     
total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders   93,691 187,744
transaction directly recognised in the equity statement    (2,500) (2,070)
Balance brought forward from the previous year    3,481,555 3,295,881     
 Balance attributable to equity holders of the company at the end of the period  3,572,746 3,481,555      
DIVIDENDS
there is no dividend declared for the financial year 2013/14.

PROPERTY, PLANT & EqUIPMENT/WORK IN PROGRESS
total expenditure on acquisition of property, plant & equipment on account of the proposed project 
during the year amounted to rs. 898,594,621 (2012/13 - rs. 653,421,476). the details of property, plant & 
equipment of the group are shown in the notes to the Financial statements (Page no.39). 

MARKET VALUE OF FREEHOLD PROPERTIES
the freehold land owned by the company was revalued by a professionally qualified independent 
valuer during the financial year 2011/12. Details of revaluation, written down value and the carrying 
amount at cost are given in note no.9.2.4 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
the names of the Directors of the company as at date of the report are on Page 3.

Mr. t D U D Peiris retires by rotation in terms of article 85 of the articles of association of the company 
and being eligible is recommended by the Board for re-election at the forthcoming annual General 
Meeting.

Mr. D h s Jayawardena attained the age of 70 years on august 17, 2012 and in accordance with section 
210(2) of the companies act no. 7 of 2007, he vacates office at the forthcoming annual General Meeting. 
a notice of a resolution has been received from a shareholder that the age limit of 70 years referred to in 
section 210(1) of the said companies act shall not apply to Mr. D h s Jayawardena who has attained the 
age of 72 years and that he be re-elected as a Director at the annual General Meeting.

Mr. M V theagarajah attained the age of 70 years on october 13, 2001 and in accordance with section 
210(2) of the companies act no. 7 of 2007, he vacates office at the forthcoming annual General Meeting. 
a notice of a resolution has been received from a shareholder that the age limit of 70 years referred to in 
section 210(1) of the said companies act shall not apply to Mr. M V theagarajah who has attained the 
age of 82 years and that he be re-elected as a Director at the annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS IN THE NORMAL COURSE OF BUSINESS
the Directors’ have disclosed their interests in contracts with the group both direct & indirect, the details 
of which are set-out on pages 50 to 51 of the annual report under related Party transactions.
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INTEREST REGISTER
the Interest register is maintained as per the requirements of the companies act no. 07 of 2007. 

SHAREHOLDINGS
the distribution of shareholdings as at 31.03.2014 is shown on Page 53.
the Directors of the Group together with their spouses held 18,003 shares as at 31st March, 2014 which 
amounted to 0.01% of the total share capital.

Shareholdings of Directors together with their Spouses are as follows:    
 As at 31.03.2014 As at 31.03.2013  
 No. of  No. of
 Shares % Shares %    
Deshamanya D. h. s. Jayawardena – – – –
Mr. M. V. theagarajah 18,003 0.01 18,003 0.01
Mr. J. M. s. Brito –  – – –
Mr. s. M. hapugoda –  – – –
Mr. t. D. U. D. Peiris –  – – –
Mr. a. l. Gooneratne – – – –    
 18,003 0.01 18,003 0.01    

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
no circumstances have arisen since the date of the statement of financial position which would require 
adjustments to or disclosure in the financial statements.

AUDITORS
the Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 have been audited by Messrs. KPMG, 
chartered accountants, who express their willingness to continue in office. In accordance with the 
companies act no. 07 of 2007, a resolution relating to their re-appointment and authorising the Directors’ 
to determine their remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming annual General Meeting.

Independent auditor’s report on the financial statements is given on Page 20 of the annual report.

the auditors’ Messrs. KPMG were paid rs. 240,000 (2012/13 - rs. 172,000) as audit fees by the Group. In 
addition they were paid rs. 278,000 (2012/13 - rs. 213,000) by the Group for non-audit related services.

as far as the Directors’ are aware, the auditors’ do not have any relationship other than that of an 
auditor with the company or its subsidiary other than those disclosed above. the auditors also do not 
have any interest in the company.

By order of the Board of Directors
 

 D. H. S. Jayawardena J. M. S. Brito
 chairman Director

R. E. V. Casie Chetty
Director
Aitken Spence Corporate Finance (Private) Limited
Secretaries

28th august, 2014
colombo.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

the companies act no.7 of 2007 requires the Directors of the company to be responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements and other statutory reports. the responsibilities 
of the Directors, in relation to the financial statements of Browns Beach hotels Plc and the consolidated 
Financial statements of the Group are set out in this report.

the Directors confirm that the financial statements and other statutory reports of the company and 
its subsidiary for the year ended 31st March 2014 incorporated in this report have been prepared in 
accordance with the companies act no.7 of 2007, the sri lanka accounting and auditing standards act 
no. 15 of 1995 and the listing rules of the colombo stock exchange.

the Directors have taken appropriate steps to ensure that the Group maintains adequate and accurate 
records which reflect the true financial position of the company and the Group. the Directors have 
taken appropriate and reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the company and the Group. the 
Directors have instituted appropriate systems of internal control in order to minimise and detect fraud, 
errors and other irregularities. the Directors in maintaining a sound system of internal control and in 
protecting the assets of the company have further adopted risk management strategies to identify and 
evaluate the risks which the company could be exposed and its impact to the company.

the Directors having considered the Group’s business plans, and a review of its current and future 
operations, are of the view that the company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in 
operation. the Directors have adopted the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

the financial statements presented in this annual report for the year ended 31st March 2014, have been 
prepared based on the sri lanka accounting standards (slFrs/lKass) which came into effect from 1st 
January 2012. the Directors have selected the appropriate accounting policies and such policies adopted 
by the Group are disclosed and explained in the financial statements.

the Board of Directors confirm that the company and the Group’s consolidated statements of Financial 
Position as at 31st March 2014 and the comprehensive Income statements for the company and the Group 
for the financial year ended 31st March 2014 reflect a true and fair view of the company and the Group.

the Directors have provided the auditors with every opportunity to carry out any reviews and tests that 
they consider appropriate and necessary for the performance of their responsibilities. the responsibility 
of the Independent auditors in relation to the financial statements is set out in the Independent auditors 
report.

the Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge all payments to employees, regulatory and 
statutory authorities due and payable by the company, and its subsidiary have been either duly paid 
or adequately provided for in the financial statements. the Directors further confirm that they promote 
the highest ethical, environmental and safety standards within the Group. the Directors also ensure that 
the relevant national laws, international laws and codes of regulatory authorities, professional institutes 
and trade associations have been complied with by the Group.
By order of the Board,

R. E. V. Casie Chetty
Director
Aitken Spence Corperate Finance (Private) Limited
Secretaries

28th august, 2014  
colombo
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BROWNS BEACH HOTELS PLC 
Report on the Financial Statements
we have audited the accompanying financial statements of Browns Beach hotels Plc, (the” company”), 
and the consolidated financial statements of the company and its subsidiary (the” Group”), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st March, 2014, and the statements of income, 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes comprising 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information set out on pages 22 to 
51 of the annual report.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with sri lanka accounting standards. this responsibility includes: designing, 
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting 
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in 
the circumstances.

Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion
our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. we 
conducted our audit in accordance with sri lanka auditing standards. those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.
an audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. an audit also includes assessing the accounting policies used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. we therefore believe that our audit provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the company maintained proper accounting 
records for the year ended 31st March, 2014 and the financial statements give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the company as at 31st March, 2014 and of its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with sri lanka accounting standards.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the company and its subsidiary dealt with thereby as at 31st March, 2014, and of its financial performance 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with sri lanka accounting standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
these financial statements also comply with the requirements of section 153(2) to 153(7) of the companies 
act no. 07 of 2007.

chartered accountants
colombo
27th May 2014
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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 statement of comprehensive income ...  22
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 notes to the Financial statements .........  26-55
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INCOME STATEMENT

 Group Company
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH   2014 2013 2014 2013
  Note Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000 Rs.'000      
Revenue...........................................................................  – – – – 

other income  ...................................................................... 3 – 219 4,319 4,893

staff costs .............................................................................. 4 (17,049) (7,593) (7,125) (6,862)

Depreciation .........................................................................   (882) (875) (882) (875)

other operating expenses - indirect ................................. 5 (11,082) (9,776) (9,175) (9,360)

Interest income ....................................................................  165,379 281,661 165,379 281,661       
Profit before taxation .......................................................... 6 136,366 263,636 152,516 269,457

Income tax expense ............................................................. 7 (43,117) (75,892) (43,117) (75,892)       
Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders

 of the parent company ...................................................  93,249 187,744 109,399 193,565       
earnings per share (rs.) ..................................................... 8 0.72 1.45 0.84 1.49

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
 Group Company
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH   2014 2013 2014 2013
   Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000      
Profit for the year  .........................................................................  93,249 187,744 109,399 193,565

Other Comprehensive Income

actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans ...............................  442 – 442 –       
other comprehensive Income for the year net of tax ......................   442 – 442 –        
Total Comprehensive Income for the year net of tax
attributable to the equity holders of the parent company .........   93,691 187,744 109,841 193,565       

the notes on pages 26 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

 Group Company
AS AT 31st MARCH    2014 2013 2014 2013
  Note  Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000       
ASSETS    
Property, plant and equipment  ......................................... 9  2,536,602 1,638,371 859,313 859,466
Investments in subsidiary .................................................... 10  – – 914,000 414,000
Deferred tax assets .................................................................. 11  26 79 26 79       
     2,536,628 1,638,450 1,773,339 1,273,545       
Current Assets
Inventories ................................................................................ 12  12 12 12 12
trade and other receivables ................................................ 13  32,635 76,539 32,635 76,539
Deposits and prepayments  ................................................   2,904 1,693 1,554 1,693
amounts due from related parties  .................................. 14  – – 790,547 376,402
cash and cash equivalents .................................................. 15  1,013,165 1,791,333 1,012,305 1,787,194       
     1,048,716 1,869,577 1,837,053 2,241,840       
Assets Held for Sale ............................................................. 16  – 518 – 518      
TOTAL ASSETS ....................................................................   3,585,344 3,508,545 3,610,392 3,515,903       
EqUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
stated capital ............................................................................ 17  2,383,449 2,383,449 2,383,449 2,383,449
revaluation reserve ...............................................................   840,807 840,807 840,807 840,807
reserve .......................................................................................   10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
retained earnings  ..................................................................   338,490 247,299 365,245 255,404

Total equity attributable to       
Equity holders of the parent company .........................   3,572,746 3,481,555 3,599,501 3,489,660       
Non-Current Liabilities
employee benefits  ................................................................. 18  471 695 248 695       
     471 695 248 695       
Current Liabilities
trade and other payables  .................................................... 19  2,692 3,948 2,560 3,948
amounts due to related parties  ........................................ 20  1,525 1,468 173 721
current tax payable ............................................................... 21  7,910 20,879 7,910 20,879       
     12,127 26,295 10,643 25,548       
TOTAL LIABILITIES  .........................................................   12,598 26,990 10,891 26,243       
TOTAL EqUITY AND LIABILITIES ..........................   3,585,344 3,508,545 3,610,392 3,515,903       
the above statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with notes to the financial statements 
on pages 26 to 51.
I certify that the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014 are in compliance with the 
requirements of the companies act no.07 of 2007.

 C. M. S. Jayawickrama  
 chief Financial officer  

the Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. 
approved and signed on behalf of the Board

 D. H. S. Jayawardena J. M. S. Brito
 chairman Director

27th May, 2014
colombo.



24 25

B r o w n s  B e a c h  h o t e l s  P  l  c B r o w n s  B e a c h  h o t e l s  P  l  c

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EqUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH
Group
 Attributable to the Equity Holders of the parent
  Stated Reserve Revaluation Retained Total Non Total
  Capital  Reserve Earnings  controlling Equity
       Interest 
  Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000        
Balance as at 1st April 2012   2,383,449 10,000  840,807  61,625 3,295,881 –  3,295,881
Profit for the year  – – – 187,744 187,744 – 187,744
other comprehensive Income  – –  –  – – –  –         
  – – – 187,744 187,744 – 187,744
Direct share issue expenses  – – – (2,070) (2,070) – (2,070)
        
Balance as at 31st March 2013  2,383,449 10,000 840,807 247,299 3,481,555 –  3,481,555         
Profit for the year  – –  – 93,249 93,249 – 93,249
other comprehensive Income  – – – 442 442 – 442        
  – – – 93,691 93,691 – 93,691
Direct share issue expenses  – –  – (2,500) (2,500) – (2,500)        
Balance as at 31st March 2014  2,383,449 10,000 840,807 338,490 3,572,746 –  3,572,746        

Company
   Stated Reserve Revaluation Retained Total
   Capital  Reserve Earnings Equity
       
   Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000       
Balance as at 1st April 2012   2,383,449 10,000 840,807 61,839 3,296,095
Profit for the year    – – – 193,565 193,565
other comprehensive Income   – – – – –       
   – – – 193,565 193,565
Balance as at 31st March 2013   2,383,449 10,000 840,807 255,404 3,489,660       
Profit for the year   – – – 109,399 109,399
other comprehensive Income   – – – 442 442       
   – – – 109,841 109,841       
Balance as at 31st March 2014   2,383,449 10,000 840,807 365,245 3,599,501       

the notes on pages 26 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH Group Company
   2014 2013 2014 2013
   Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000      
Profit before taxation ................................................................  136,366 263,636 152,516 269,457
Adjustments for,
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment ...................  882 875 882 875
Interest income ...........................................................................  (165,379) (281,661) (165,379) (281,661)
Provision for retiring gratuity ..................................................  348 197 125 197
reversal for bad and doubtful debts .......................................  – (217) – (217)      

Operating (loss) before working capital changes ...................  (27,783) (17,170) (11,856) (11,349)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories ..........................................  – 68 – 68
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables ..............  21,051 34,094 21,051 34,094 
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and prepayments ...............  (1,211) 239 139 239
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from related parties .....  – 14,428 41 14,377
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables ..................  (1,256) (1,793) (1,388) (1,793)
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to related parties ..........  57 1,278 (548) 721      

Cash generated/(used) from operations ................................  (9,142) 31,144 7,439 36,357

Income tax paid ..........................................................................  (56,033) (103,550) (56,033) (103,550)
retiring gratuity paid ................................................................  (130) (20) (130) (20)      
Net cash flow from operating activities ................................  (65,305) (72,426) (48,724) (67,213)      

Cash flows from investing activities
addition of capital work in progress ......................................  (898,595) (653,421) (210) –
Proceeds from assets held for sales .........................................  – 60 –  60 
Investment in subsidiary ..........................................................  – – (500,000) (414,000)
Direct share issue expenses.......................................................  (2,500) (2,070) – –
Funds advanced to negombo Beach resorts (Pvt) ltd ........  – – (414,187) (250,439)
Interest received .........................................................................  188,232 286,637 188,232 286,637      

Net cash generated/(used) in investing activities ...............   (712,863) (368,794) (726,165) (377,742)      

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ..........................  (778,168) (441,220) (774,889) (444,955)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year .......  1,791,333 2,232,553 1,787,194 2,232,149      
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year ...............  1,013,165 1,791,333 1,012,305 1,787,194      

Analysis of Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

cash at bank and in hand .........................................................  1,665 833 805 694
short term deposits ....................................................................  1,011,500 1,790,500 1,011,500 1,786,500      
   1,013,165 1,791,333 1,012,305 1,787,194      

the notes on pages 26 to 51 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 1.1 Reporting Entity
 Browns Beach hotels Plc, (the “company”) is a Public limited company incorporated and 

domiciled in sri lanka and listed on the colombo stock exchange. the registered office of the 
company is located at no. 315, Vauxhall street, colombo 02.

 the consolidated financial statements of the company as at and for the year ended 31st March 
2014 comprise the company and its subsidiary. 

 1.1.1 Principal activities and nature of operations
 the group primarily is involved in hoteliering.

 1.1.2 Responsibility for financial statements
 the Board of Directors of the company is responsible for preparation and presentation of 

these financial statements.

 1.1.3 Reporting date
 the financial statements of all companies in the Group end on 31st March.

 1.2 Basis of preparation
 1.2.1 Statement of compliance 
 the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the sri lanka accounting 

standards (herein referred to as slFrss/lKass) issued by the Institute of chartered 
accountants of sri lanka (Icasl) and the requirement of the companies act no. 07 of 
2007 and sri lanka accounting and auditing standards act no.15 of 1995.

 1.2.2 Approval of Financial Statements
 the consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors 

on 27th May 2014.

 1.2.3 Basis of measurement
 the financial statements of the Group and the company have been prepared on the historical 

cost basis except for the measurement of the following material items in the statement of 
financial position.

 - available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
 - land is measured at fair value.
 - retirement benefit obligations which are measured at the present value of the retirement
  benefit obligations.

  1.2.4 Functional and presentation currency

 these financial statements are presented in sri lankan rupees, which is the Group’s 
functional currency. all financial information presented has been rounded to the nearest 
thousand.

 1.2.5 Use of Estimates and judgements
 the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and the company in conformity 

with slFrss/lKass requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities,income and expenses. actual results may differ from these estimates.

 estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in 
any future periods affected. 
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 1.2.6 Going concern
 the Directors have made an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern 

in the foreseeable future, and they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 the accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the 

financial statement of the Group and the company.

 the accounting policies have been applied consistently by Group entities.

 2.1 Basis of consolidation
 2.1.1 Business combinations 
 Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition 

date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group. control exists when 
the company has the power, directly or indirectly to govern the financial and operating 
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the 
Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable. the 
Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date: as the fair value of the consideration 
transferred plus the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, 
less the net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed, all measured as of the acquisition date. when the excess is negative, a 
bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit or loss. transaction costs, other 
than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in 
connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

  2.1.2 Subsidiaries
 subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. existence of control is evident when the 

company controls the composition of the Board of Directors of the entity or holds more 
than 50% of the issued shares of the entity or 50% of the voting rights of the entity or is 
entitled to receive more than half of every dividend from shares carrying unlimited right 
to participate in distribution of profits or capital. the financial statements of subsidiaries 
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences 
until the date control ceases.

 2.1.3 Loss of control
 on the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any 

non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. any 
surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in profit or loss. If the Group 
retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value as 
at the date that control is lost. subsequently, It is accounted for an equity accounted investee 
or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

 2.1.4 Transactions eliminated on consolidation
 Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from 

intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. 
Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated 
against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses 
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no 
evidence of impairment.
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 2.2 Foreign currency
 transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of 

Group entities at exchange rates at the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currency at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency 
at the exchange rate at that date. the foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the 
difference between the amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, 
adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and amortised cost in foreign 
currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

 non-monetary assets and liabilities in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical 
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transaction. nonmonetary assets and 
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are re-translated to 
reporting currency using the exchange rate that was prevailing on the date the fair value was 
determined. the resulting gains or losses on translations are dealt with in the income statement. 
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss, except for 
differences arising on the retranslation of available for sale equity investments.

  2.3 Financial Instruments
 2.3.1 Initial Recognition and measurement
 the Group classifies non derivative financial assets within the scope of lKas 39 into 

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held to maturity 
investments and available for sale financial assets.

 Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes financial assets held for trading 
and financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. 
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of 
selling or repurchasing terms.

 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the statement of financial 
position at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the income statement.

 Loans and Receivables
 loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 

quoted in the active market. such assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly 
attributable transaction costs. subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are 
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method (eIr) less impairment.

 Held to maturity
 non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities 

are classified as held to maturity. held to maturity financial assets are recognized initially at 
fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. subsequent to initial recognition 
held to maturity financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest 
method less any impairment losses.
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 Available for sale financial assets
 Financial assets are non derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale 

or are not classified in any of the previous categories. the Group investments in equity 
securities and certain debt securities are classified as available for sale financial assets. 
subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, 
other than impairment losses and foreign currency differences on available for sale debt 
instruments are recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value 
reserve equity. when an investment is derecognised the gain or loss accumulated in equity 
is reclassified to profit or loss.

 Impairment of financial assets
 the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that 

a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. a financial asset or a group 
of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if and only if there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition 
of the asset and that loss events has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

  2.3.2 Financial liabilities Initial recognition and measurement
 Financial liabilities within the scope of lKas 39 is classified as financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or loss, other payables or as derivatives as appropriate and determines 
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

 all financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of other payables 
add directly attributable transaction costs.

 the financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank overdrafts, loans and 
borrowings.

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for 

trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
profit loss.

 Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the income statement.

 the Group has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial recognition as at fair 
value through profit or loss.

 Offsetting of financial instruments
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the 

consolidated statement of financial if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal 
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to 
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

 Fair value of financial instruments
 For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined 

using appropriate valuation techniques. such techniques may include using recent arm’s 
length market transactions; reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is 
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.
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2.4 Assets and bases of their valuation
 2.4.1.1 Property, plant and equipment - Recognition and measurement
 Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses. the cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its 
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition 
for its intended use. the cost of self constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct 
labour and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition 
for its intended use. the cost of includes costs of dismantling and removing the items and 
restoring the site on which they are located and borrowing costs on qualifying assets.

 the Group revalues land at least once in every five years and is stated at its fair value 
at the date of revaluation less any subsequent impairment losses. any surplus arising on 
the revaluation is recognized in other comprehensive income except to the extent that the 
surplus reverses a previous revaluation deficit on the same asset recognized in profit or 
loss, in which case the credit to that extent is recognized in profit or loss. any deficit on 
revaluation is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it reverses a previous 
revaluation surplus on the same asset, in which case the debit to that extent is recognized 
in other comprehensive income. therefore, revaluation increases and decreases cannot 
be offset, even within a class of assets. Upon disposal, any related revaluation reserve is 
transferred from the revaluation reserve to accumulated profits and is not taken into account 
in arriving at the gain or loss on disposal. the details of land valuation are disclosed in note 
9.2 to the financial statements.

 when parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items of property plant and equipment.

 Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised 
as part of the equipment cost.

 Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal of with the carrying amount of property, plant and 
equipment and are recognized net within other income in profit or loss.

 2.4.1.2 Subsequent costs
 the cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised 

in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
with the item will flow to the Group, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. the 
costs of the day-to-day servicing and any other costs are recognised in the income statement 
as incurred.
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 2.4.1.3 Depreciation
 Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. significant components 

of individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from 
the remainder of that asset, that component is depreciated separately.

 Depreciation is recognised in the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation 
is provided proportionately in the year of purchase and in the year of disposal of the asset. 
Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the 
date that the asset is classified as held for sale or on the date that the asset is disposed. 

 the estimated useful lives are as follows:

	 	 •	Plant	&	Equipment	 03-10	years
	 	 •	Office	Equipment	 03-10	years
	 	 •	Motor	Vehicles	 05	years
	 	 •	Furniture	&	Fittings	 10	years

 Depreciation is not provided on land and assets under construction.

 the depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted if appropriate.

 2.4.2 Leased assets
 leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership are classified as finance leases. the owner occupied property acquired by way of 
finance lease is stated at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value 
of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment losses if any.

 2.4.3 Investments

 Investments in subsidiary company is measured at cost less provision for fall in value of 
investments and treated as non current assets in the parent company’s financial statements.

 2.4.4 Inventories
 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net releasable value. the cost of inventories 

is based on a weighted average principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring 
the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition.

 net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

 2.4.5 Trade and other receivables
 trade and other receivables are stated at the amounts estimated to be realised after providing 

for impairment for doubtful debts.
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 2.4.6 Cash and cash equivalents
 cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and in bank and short term deposits with 

original maturity of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in 
current liabilities. For purpose of cash flow Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand 
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as components of 
cash and cash equivalent.

 2.4.7 Non-Current Assets held for Sale
 non-current assets that are expected to be recovered primarily through a disposal rather 

than through continuing use are classified as held for sale. Immediately before classification 
as held for sale, the assets (or components of a disposal group) are re-measured in accordance 
with the Group’s accounting policies. thereafter the assets (or disposal group) are measured 
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. any impairment loss 
on the above assets is first allocated to goodwill, and then to the remaining assets and 
liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, 
deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets and investment property, which are continued 
to be measures in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. Impairment losses on 
initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains or losses on re-measurement are 
recognised in profit or loss. Gains are not recognized in excess of any impairment loss.

 2.5 Liabilities and Provisions
 2.5.1 Liabilities
 liabilities classified as current liabilities on the statement of financial position are those 

which fall due for payment on demand or within one year from the reporting date. non-
current liabilities are those balances payable after one year from the reporting date. all 
known liabilities are accounted for in the statement of financial position.

 2.5.2 Provisions
 a provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or 

constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

 Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate 
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the liability. the unwinding of discount is recognised as finance cost.

 2.5.3 Trade and Other Payables
 trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the 

ordinary course of business from suppliers. accounts payable are classified as current 
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current 
liabilities.
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 2.5.4 Employee Benefits
 2.5.4.1 Defined Contribution Plan
 a defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity 

pays fixed contributions to a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive 
obligations to pay further amounts. all employees of the company are members 
of the employees’ Provident Fund and employees’ trust Fund, to which their 
employers contribute 12% - 15% and 3% respectively of such employees’ basic or 
consolidated wage or salary, cost of living and all other allowances. obligations for 
contributions to defined benefit plans, ePF & etF, are recognised as an employee 
benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by 
employees.

 2.5.4.2 Defined Benefit Plans – Retiring gratuities
 a defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined 

contribution plan. the liability recognised in the statement of financial position in 
respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
at the reporting date. the defined benefit obligation is calculated annually using the 
Projected Unit credit method. the present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows using interest rates that 
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have 
terms of maturity approximating to the terms of the liability.

 Provision has been made in the financial statements for retiring gratuities from 
the first year of service for all employees. however, according to the Payment of 
Gratuity act no. 12 of 1983, the liability for payment to an employee arises only after 
the completion of 5 years continued service. the liability is not externally funded.

 the Group recognizes all expenses related to defined benefit plans in staff cost in 
income statement.

 2.5.4.3 Short-term Benefits
 short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis 

and are expensed as the related service is provided. a liability is recognised for the 
amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus if the company has a 
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service 
rendered by the employee and the obligation can be measured reliably.
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 2.6 Revenue
 revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade 

discounts, value added taxes and intra-group revenue. no revenue is recognised if there are 
significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due.

 the following specific criteria are used for the purpose of recognition of revenue:
	 •	Apartment	 revenue	 is	 recognised	 for	 the	 rooms	occupied	on	a	daily	basis,	whilst	 food	and	

beverage sales are accounted for at the time of sale. all revenues are recognised on an accrual 
basis and matched with the related expenditure.

	 •	Dividend	 income	 is	 recognised	 in	 income	statement	when	 the	 right	 to	 receive	dividends	 is	
established.

	 •	Interest	income	is	recognised	in	the	income	statement	as	it	accrues.

 2.7 Expenses
 all expenditure incurred in the running of the business and in maintaining the property, plant & 

equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged to income in arriving at the profit for the year.

 For the purpose of presentation of Income statement, the Directors are of the opinion that 
“function of expenses method” presents fairly the elements of the entity’s performance and 
hence such presentation method is adopted.

 2.8 Financing Income/(Expenses)
 Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale 

financial assets), gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets.

 Interest income is recognised as it accrues in income statement, using the effective interest 
method.

 Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, and impairment losses recognised on 
financial assets. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction 
or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest 
method.

 Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

 2.9 Income Tax Expenses
 Income tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised 

in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which 
case is recognised in equity or other comprehensive income.

 2.9.1 Current Taxes
 current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates 

enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous years.
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 2.9.2 Deferred tax
 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts 

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial 
recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that 
is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits and 
differences relating to investment in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent 
that they probably will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

 Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary 
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date.

 a deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences 
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
they can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

 2.9.3 Economic Service Charge (ESC)
 as per the provisions of the economic service charge act no. 13 of 2006, esc is payable on 

the liable turnover at specified rates. esc is deductible from the income tax liability. any 
unclaimed liability can be carried forward and set off against the income tax payable as per 
the relevant provisions in the act.

 2.10 Cash Flow Statement
 the cash flow statement has been prepared using the “Indirect Method”.

 2.11 Capital commitments and contingencies
 contingencies are possible assets or obligations that arise from a past event and would be 

confirmed only on the occurrence or non occurrence of uncertain future events, which are 
beyond the Group’s control. capital commitments and contingent liabilities of the company are 
disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements.

 2.12 Events occurring after the reporting period
 all material post reporting date events have been considered and where appropriate adjustment 

to or disclosures have been made in the financial statements. 

 2.13 Earnings per share (EPS)
 the Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (ePs) for its ordinary shares. ePs is 

calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the company 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted 
ePs is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares.
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 2.14 Segmental Information
 a segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing 

products or services (Business segments) or in providing products or service within a particular 
economics environment (geographical segment) which are subject to risks and rewards that are 
different from those of other segments.

 2.15 New Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
 the Institute of chartered accountants of sri lanka has issued the following standards which 

become effective for annual periods beginning after the current financial year. accordingly these 
standards have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. the Group will be 
adopting these standards when they become effective.

 slFrs 9 – Financial Instruments
 slFrs 10 – consolidated Financial statements
 slFrs 12 – Disclosure of Interest in other entities
 slFrs 13 – Fair value measurement
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3. OTHER INCOME 
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13      
 sundry income  – 2 – 2
 lease land rental  – – 4,319 4,674
 reversal of impairment of doubtful debts  – 217 – 217      
   – 219 4,319 4,893      
4. STAFF COSTS 
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13      
 4.1 salaries and wages  16,150 6,933 6,449 6,202
 other staff related expenses  319 214 319 214
 Defined contribution plan cost - ePF and etF  232 249 232 249
 Defined benefit plan cost - retiring gratuity  348 197 125 197      
   17,049 7,593 7,125 6,862      

5. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES - INDIRECT 
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13      
 administration and establishment  9,921 8,950 8,014 8,534
 repairs and maintenance  534 388 534 388
 energy  627 438 627 438       
   11,082 9,776 9,175 9,360      

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
 Profit before taxation is stated after charging all expenses including the following:
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13      
 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment  882 875 882 875
 auditors remuneration
 – audit  240 172 125 100
 – non audit  278 213 233 213
 legal fees  223 294 223 294
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7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13      
 Current tax
 taxation on current year profit  43,064 75,910 43,064 75,910      
   43,064 75,910 43,064 75,910
 Deferred tax
 Deferred tax charge/(reverse)  53 (18) 53 (18)      
 Income tax expense recognised

in income statement  43,117 75,892 43,117 75,892      
 7.1 Taxation on profits
 During the year there were no business profits generated from Browns Beach hotels Plc due to 

the demolishing of the hotel to construct the proposed new hotel. Income tax has been computed 
on interest income which is taxed at a standard rate of 28% as per the Inland revenue act no. 10 
of 2006.

 the business profits of negombo Beach resorts (Pvt) ltd, would be exempt from income 
tax under section 17a of BoI law no. 04 of 1978 for a period of 12 years once the company 
commences commercial operations.

 7.2 Reconciliation of the accounting profit and to Income Tax Expense
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13      
 Operating profit before taxation  136,366 263,636 152,516 269,457
 Adjusted profits 
 Disallowable expenses  2,945 3,219  2,945 3,219
 capital allowances  (102) (110) (102) (110)
 allowable expenses  14,591 4,361 (1,559) (1,460)      
 Taxable income  153,800 271,106 153,800 271,106      
 Income tax @ 28%  43,064 75,910 43,064 75,910      
 Taxation on current year profit  43,064 75,910 43,064 75,910      

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE
 earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary 

shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
 the following reflects the income and share data used in the basic earnings per share computations.
 Group Company
   2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13      
 net profit attributable to ordinary

 shareholders of the parent (rs.)  93,249,068 187,744,484 109,398,995 193,564,929
 weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue  129,600,000 129,600,000 129,600,000 129,600,000
 Earnings per share (Rs.)  0.72 1.45 0.84 1.49
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT
 In thousands of Rs.
 9.1    
 Group   Plant,  
    machinery Furniture  Capital
  Freehold and office and Motor Work-in
  land equipment fittings vehicles Progress Total         Cost/Valuation
 Balance as at 01st April 2013   856,500  717 72 4,905 778,905 1,641,099
 additions  – 210 – – 898,385 898,595 
 transfer -held for sale  – 518 – – – 518       
 Balance as at 31st March 2014  856,500 1,445 72 4,905 1,677,290 2,540,212       
 Accumulated Depreciation
 Balance as at 1st April 2013   – 624 60 2,044 – 2,728
 charge for the year  – 61 3 818 – 882       
 Balance as at 31st March 2014  – 685 63 2,862 – 3,610       
 written Down Value 
 As at 31st March 2014   856,500  760 9 2,043 1,677,290 2,536,602        
 as at 31st March 2013  856,500 93 12 2,861 778,905 1,638,371       
 Company    
    Plant,    
    machinery Furniture  Capital
  Freehold and office and Motor Work-in
  land equipment fittings vehicles Progress Total        
 Cost/Valuation
 Balance as at 01st April 2013  856,500 717 72 4,905 – 862,194
 additions  – 210 – – – 210
 transfer - held for sale  – 518 – – – 518       
 Balance as at 31st March 2014  856,500 1,445 72 4,905 – 862,922       
 Accumulated Depreciation
 Balance as at 1st April 2013  – 624 60 2,044 – 2,728
 charge for the year  – 61 3 818 – 882       
 Balance as at 31st March 2014  – 685 63 2,862 – 3,610       
 written Down Value 
 As at 31st March 2014   856,500  760 9 2,043 – 859,313        
 as at 31st March 2013  856,500 93 12 2,861 – 859,466        
 
 the cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment is rs. 589,902 (2013- rs. 476,902). 
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9.2 Revaluation details of land 
 In thousands of Rs.
  Year of
 Location Valuation Land   
 lewis Place, negombo    2003 74,307
 lewis Place, negombo    2007 290,000
 lewis Place, negombo    2012 476,500   
      840,807   

9.2.1  the Book value of freehold land owned by the company, which is situated at no. 175, 
lewis Place, negombo has been revalued by Mr. J. rajasooriya, (a.I.V. (sri lanka), 
M.P.V.a. (sri lanka) on 26th March 2003.

9.2.2 Freehold land at no. 175, lewis Place, negombo was valued by Mr. J. rajasooriya, a.I.V. 
(sri lanka), M.P.V.a. (sri lanka) a professional valuer, on 28th March 2007 on “Market 
Pricing basis”.

9.2.3  Free hold land at no.175, lewis Place, negombo of Browns Beach hotel Plc was revalued 
by Mr. K. c. B. condegama, (a.I.V. sri lanka) a professional valuer on 31st March 2012 on 
“Market Pricing basis”.

9.2.4  the carrying value of freehold land if they were carried at cost is as follows:

 In thousands of Rs.
   Written down Land Carrying amount

   Value as at revaluation at cost as at
   31.03.2014 surplus 31.03.2014
 Freehold land (extent 1244.43 perches)  856,500 840,807 15,693

  9.3 Leasehold Land 
 9.3.1 Part of the land of Browns Beach hotels Plc has been acquired on a 30 year lease from the 

Government of sri lanka until the year 2030 (extent 216.7 Perches).

 a sum of lKr 1,440,000 has been charged to the Income statement for 2013/14 on account 
of annual lease rent for this property.

 9.3.2 Unexpired lease period of leasehold land  16 years

9.3.3 Lease commitments

 lease rental payable within one year rs. 1,440,000
 lease rental payable within one to five years rs. 10,080,000
 lease rental payable after five years rs. 40,500,000
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10. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
 Name of the subsidiary Principal activity  Group
    Holding %
 negombo Beach resorts (Pvt) ltd. construct and operate a new hotel  100

11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 Balance as at the beginning of the year  79 60 79 60
 Deductible temporary differences
 transferred from/(to) Income statement  (53) 19 (53) 19      
 Balance as at the end of the year  26 79 26 79      
 Composition of Deferred Tax Assets
 Deferred tax asset attributable to:
 Defined benefit obligations  29 83 29 83
 Property,plant and equipment  (3) (4) (3) (4)      
 Net deferred tax assets  26 79 26 79      

 11.1 Movement in tax effect of temporary differences
 Group 2013/2014 2012/2013
  Balance as at Recognised Balance as at Balance as at Recognised in Balance as at
  01.04.2013  in income 31.03.2014 01.04.2012 income 31.03.2013
   statement   statement
Deferred tax asset
tax effect on defined
 benefit obligations 83 (55) 28 62 21 83       
  83 (55) 28 62 21 83       
Deferred tax liabilities
Property plant and equipment (4) 2 (2) (2) (2) (4)       
  (4) 2 (2) (2) (2) (4)       
net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 79 (53) 26 60 19 79       

 Company 2013/2014 2012/2013
  Balance as at Recognised Balance as at Balance as at Recognised in Balance as at
  01.04.2013  in income 31.03.2014 01.04.2012 income 31.03.2013
   Statement   Statement
Deferred tax asset
tax effect on defined
 benefit obligations 83 (55) 28 62 21 83 
tax effect on other items –  – – – – –        
  83 (55) 28 62 21 83       
Deferred tax liabilities
Property plant and equipment (4) 2 (2) (2) (2) (4)       
  (4) 2 (2) (2) (2) (4)       
net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 79 (53) 26 60 19 79       
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12. INVENTORIES
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  2013/14 2012/13 2013/14 2012/13      
 consumables and others  12 12 12 12      
   12 12 12 12      

 there were no inventories pledged as security for bank facilities as at 31st March, 2014.

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 13.1 Interest receivable  24,291 63,682 24,291 63,682

 wht on interest income  7,709 10,063 7,709 10,063
 other receivables  635 2,794 635 2,794      

   32,635 76,539 32,635 76,539      

 13.2 no loans were given to employees over and above rs. 20,000.
 13.3 no loans have been given to Directors of the company.

14. AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 aitken spence Plc  – – 22 64
 negombo Beach resorts (Pvt) ltd.  – – 790,525  376,338       
   – – 790,547 376,402      

15. CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS 
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 short term deposits  1,011,500 1,790,500 1,011,500 1,786,500
 cash at Bank and in hand  1,665 833 805 694       
 cash and cash equivalents as in
 the statement of cash flows  1,013,165 1,791,333  1,012,305 1,787,194      

16. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 Property, plant and equipment

 classified as held for sale  –  518 – 518      
 consequent to the decision taken to demolish and reconstruct the new hotel the carrying amount of 

assets held by the company was recognised under assets held for sale, and undisposed assets are 
transferred back to property, plant and equipment at carrying amount.
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17. STATED CAPITAL AND RESERVES
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 17.1 Issued and fully paid
 Ordinary share capital
 at the beginning of the year  2,383,449 2,383,449 2,383,449 2,383,449
 Issued during the year  – – – –      
 at the end of the year  2,383,449 2,383,449 2,383,449 2,383,449      
 Number of shares   129,600,000 129,600,000 129,600,000 129,600,000

 the holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time 
and are entitled to one vote per individual present at the meeting of shareholders or one vote per 
share in case of a poll.

 17.2 Reserve
 Revaluation reserve
 revaluation reserve relates to the free hold land which has been revalued by the company.
 General reserve
 the general reserve relates to retained earnings set aside by the company.

18. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
 18.1 Provision for retiring gratuities
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 Retirement Benefit obligations
 Present value of unfunded obligations  471 695 248 695
 Present value of funded obligations  – – – –      
 Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations  471 695 248 695      

 18.2 Movement in present Value of the defined benefit obligations
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 Defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year 695 518 695 518
 expenses recognised in the income statement  348 197 125 197
 expenses recognised in other comprehensive income  (442) – (442) –
 Benefits paid  (130) (20) (130) (20)      
 Defined benefit obligations at the end of the year  471 695 248 695      

 18.3 Expenses recognised in comprehensive income
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 Expenses recognised in the income statement
 current service cost  307 197 83 197
 Interest cost  41 – 41 –      
   348 197 125 197      

 Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income
 net actuarial (gain) /loss  (442) – (442) –      
   (442) – (442) –      
 Total  (94) 197 (317) 197      
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 18.4 Sensitivity Analysis
 the following table demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the key 

assumptions employed with all other variables held constant in the employment benefit liability 
measurement, in respect of the year 2013/14.

 the sensitivity of the comprehensive income statement and statement of financial position is the 
effect of the assumed changes in discount rate and salary increment rate on the profit or loss for 
the year and employment benefit obligations as at 31st March 2014.

 Effect on Effect on employment
 comprehensive income benefit liability
  (reduction)/increase  (reduction)/increase   
 In thousands of Rs.
 Increase /(decrease) in discount rate
 +1% 45 (45)
 -1% (51) 51
 Increase /(decrease) in salary escalation rate
 +1% (53) 53
 -1% 47 (47)
 18.5 The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining the liability were:
 (i) Discount rate of 10.5% (2012/13 - 12%)
 (ii) salary increment will range between 7.5%-11% per annum (2012/13 - 7% - 11%).
 (iii) retirement age of 55 years.
 (iv) the company will continue in business as a going concern.

18.6 the actuarial valuation was made on 31st March 2014. It is proposed that a valuation is obtained 
every year.

18.7 the liability is not externally funded.
18.8 the actuarial valuation was carried out by professionally qualified actuaries, Mr. Poopalanathan 

of M/s actuarial Management consultants (Pvt) ltd using projected unit credit (PUc) method.

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 trade payable  2 3 2 3
 other payable and accrued expenses  2,690 3,945 2,558 3,945      
   2,692 3,948 2,560 3,948      
20. AMOUNT DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 aitken spence hotel Managements (Pvt) ltd.  173 721 173 721
 aitken spence Plc.  1,352 747 – –       
   1,525 1,468 173 721      
21. INCOME TAX PAYABLE
 Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  31.03.2014 31.03.2013 31.03.2014 31.03.2013      
 Balance as at beginning of the year  20,879 48,518 20,879 48,518
 Provision made during the year  43,064 75,910 43,064 75,910      
   63,943 124,428 63,943 124,428
 less: 
 tax credit- notional tax  (18,892) (39,055) (18,892) (39,055)
 Income tax payment during the year  (37,141) (64,494) (37,141) (64,494)      
 Balance as at end of the year  7,910 20,879 7,910 20,879      
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured on an ongoing basis at either fair value or 

amortised cost. the following table analyses the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities 
by category as defined in lKas 39- Financial Instruments: recognition and measurement under 
headings reported in the statement of financial position.

 Group 2013/14 
  Note Financial Financial Financial Total
   Assets Assets Liabilities 
   Available Loans Other 
   for sales and Financial 
    Receivables Liabilities      
 In thousands of Rs.
 Financial Assets
 trade and other receivables 13 – 32,635 – 32,635
 cash and cash equivalents 15 – 1,013,165 – 1,013,165      
 total financial assets  – 1,045,800 – 1,045,800       
 total non-current  – – – –
 total current  – 1,045,800 – 1,045,800       
   – 1,045,800 – 1,045,800      
 Financial Liabilities
 trade and other payables 19 – – 2,692 2,692       
 total financial liabilities  – – 2,692 2,692       
 total non-current  – – – –
 total current  – – 2,692 2,692      
   – – 2,692 2,692      

 Group 2012/13 
  Note Financial Financial Financial Total
   Assets Assets Liabilities 
   Available Loans Other 
   for sales and Financial 
    Receivables Liabilities      
 In thousands of Rs.
 Financial Assets
 trade and other receivables 13 – 76,539 – 76,539
 cash and cash equivalents 15 – 1,791,333 – 1,791,333       
 total financial assets  – 1,867,872 – 1,867,872      
 total non-current  – – – –
 total current  – 1,867,872 – 1,867,872       
   – 1,867,872 – 1,867,872       
 Financial Liabilities
 trade and other payables 19 – – 3,948 3,948      
 total financial liabilities  – – 3,948 3,948      
 total non-current  – – – –
 total current  – – 3,948 3,948       
   – – 3,948 3,948      
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22.1 Financial Instruments Company 2013/14 
  Note Financial Financial Financial Total
   Assets Assets Liabilities 
   Available Loans Other 
   for sales and Financial 
    Receivables Liabilities      
 In thousands of Rs.
 Financial Assets
 trade and other receivables 13 – 32,635 – 32,635
 cash and cash equivalents 15 – 1,012,305 – 1,012,305       
 total financial assets  – 1,044,940 – 1,044,940       
 total non-current  – – – –
 total current  – 1,044,940 – 1,044,940      
   – 1,044,940 – 1,044,940      
 Financial Liabilities
 trade and other payables 19 – – 2,560 2,560       
 total financial liabilities  – – 2,560 2,560       
 total non-current  – – – –
 total current  – – 2,560 2,560       
   – – 2,560 2,560      

 Financial Instruments Company 2012/13
  Note Financial Financial Financial Total
   Assets Assets Liabilities 
   Available Loans Other 
   for sales and Financial 
    Receivables Liabilities      
 In thousands of Rs.
 Financial Assets
 trade and other receivables 13 – 76,539 – 76,539
 cash and cash equivalents 15 – 1,787,194 – 1,787,194      
 total financial assets  – 1,863,733 – 1,863,733      
 total non-current  – – – –
 total current  – 1,863,733 – 1,863,733       
   – 1,863,733 – 1,863,733      
 Financial Liabilities
 trade and other payables 19 – – 3,948 3,948      
 total financial liabilities  – – 3,948 3,948      
 total non-current  – – – –
 total current  – – 3,948 3,948       

   – – 3,948 3,948      
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 22.2 Fair values
 the fair value of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the 

statement of financial position as at the reporting dates are as follows:
 Group 2013/14 Company 2013/14

   Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
   Amount  Amount       
 In thousands of Rs.
 Financial Assets
 trade and other receivables  32,635 32,635 32,635 32,635
 cash and cash equivalents  1,013,165 1,013,165 1,012,305 1,012,305      
 Total financial assets  1,045,800 1,045,800 1,044,940 1,044,940       
 Financial Liabilities
 trade and other payables  2,692 2,692 2,560 2,560      
 Total financial liabilities  2,692 2,692 2,560 2,560      

 Group 2012/13 Company 2012/13
   Carrying Fair Value Carrying Fair Value
   Amount  Amount       

 In thousands of Rs.
 Financial Assets
 trade and other receivables  76,539 76,539 76,539 76,539
 cash and cash equivalents  1,791,333 1,791,333 1,787,194 1,787,194       
 Total financial assets  1,867,872 1,867,872 1,863,733 1,863,733       
 Financial Liabilities
 trade and other payables  3,948 3,948 3,948 3,948      
 Total financial liabilities  3,948 3,948 3,948 3,948       
 the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial 

and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and 
disclosure purposes based on the following methods.

 Property plant and equipment
 the fair value of freehold land is determined based on market values.
 the market value of property, plant and equipment is the estimated amount for which a property could 

be exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length 
transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably and willingly.

 Trade and other receivables
 Fair value of trade receivables is determined at amount estimated to be realised after making provision 

for impairment which is computed based on a loss rate using past three years debtors data.
 Fair value of other receivables are determined based on the amount estimated to be reasonably realised.
 Financial Liabilities
 Fair value of trade and other payable are determined based on the amount estimated to be reasonably 

incurred in the foreseeable future.
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23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
 23.1 Overview

 the Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.
 ∙ credit risk
 ∙ liquidity risk
 ∙ Market risk
 this note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the 

Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and the Group’s 
management of capital.

 23.2 Credit risk
 credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument 

fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers 
and investments.

 Credit risk exposure
 the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at the year end based on the carrying value of financial 

assets in the statement of financial position is given below.
   Group % Company %

 As at 31st March  2014 Allocation 2014 Allocation
   Rs.’000  Rs.’000       

 Receivables 
 trade and other receivables  32,635 3% 32,635 3%
 cash and cash equivalents   1,013,165 97% 1,012,305 97%      
 total credit exposure  1,045,800 100% 1,044,940 100%       
 Short term deposits
 the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on term deposits as at the year end based on the 

carrying value in the statement of financial position is given below:

   Group % Company %
 As at 31st March  2014 Allocation 2014 Allocation

   Rs.’000  Rs.’000       
 Government owned Banking Institutions  100,000 10%  100,000 10%
 other commercial Banks  911,500 90% 911,500 90%      
 total  1,011,500 100% 1,011,500 100%       
 Government owned Banking Institutions
 term deposits and fixed deposits held with Government owned Banking Institutions accounts 

for 10% of the total term deposits, as at 31st March 2014.
 Other Commercial Banks
 Investments made with other commercial Banks consist of fixed deposits and term deposits 

held with private commercial banks. as at 31st March 2014, 90% of the term deposits were held 
with rated commercial Banks.

 Cash and cash equivalents
 the Group limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid instruments with reputed 

banking Institutions. the Group also uses broad investment portfolios and limit investments 
with a single counterparty.
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 23.3 Liquidity risk
 liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with 

its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets. the Group’s approach 
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses 
or risk to the Group.

 the table below analyses the group’s non-derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping 
based on the maturity of liabilities as at the reporting date.

  Group

 As at 31.03.2014  Carrying Current Non-current Payable
   amount   on demand
   Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000      
 Financial Liabilities
 trade payables  2 2 – –
 other provisions and payables  2,690 2,690 – –       
 total  2,692 2,692 – –      

 Company
 As at 31.03.2014  Carrying Current Non-current Payable
   amount   on demand
   Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000 Rs.’000      
 Financial Liabilities
 trade payables  2 2 – –
 other provisions and payables  2,558 2,558 – –      
 total  2,560 2,560 – –      
 “current” represents financial liabilities which are due to mature within one year.

 23.4 Market risk
 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 

equity prices that will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. the 
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable 
parameters, while optimising the return.

 23.5 Equity prices
 the Group does not carry quoted/non quoted investments in their consolidated statement of Financial 

Position, and there is no risk on changes in equity prices.
 23.6 Foreign exchange risk

 the Group has no risk on foreign currency fluctuations as there are no financial assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currency as at the reporting date. 

 23.7 Interest rate
 Interest rate risk is the risk of fluctuation of the value or cash flows of an instrument due to change in 

market interest rates the Group has no risk on interest rates as there are no interest bearing financial 
liabilities as at the reporting date.
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24. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
 the Groups objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern 

in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital 
structure to reduce the cost of the capital.

 the capital of the company consists ordinary share capital
 the following factors are also objectively taken into consideration in managing the capital of the group.

1. Maintain sufficient capital to meet minimum regulatory requirements. (companies act).
2. Maintain strong equity base as opposed to debt capital.
3. Group’s future developments, investments and business strategies.
4. Group cash flow projections and ability to pay higher returns to shareholders.

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 the companies in the Group carries out transactions with related companies as defined in the sri lanka 

accounting standard lKas 24. related party disclosures in the ordinary course of business. the pricing 
policy applicable to such transactions are comparable with those that would have been charged from 
unrelated companies.

25.1 the names of the related companies and their relationship, the nature of transactions, terms of the 
transaction and the balance outstanding as at 31st March 2014 are as follows.

  Group Company
Name of the Related Relationship Nature of Terms of the  Transaction Amount Transaction Amount
Party  Transaction  Transaction Value outstanding Value outstanding
      as at  as at
      31.03.2014  31.03.2014
In thousands of Rs.
aitken spence hotel  services rendered, Market terms 45 – 45 –
Managements (Pvt) ltd. related company reimbursable expenses Market terms 1,697 (173) 1,697 (173)

aitken spence Plc. related company Fees for services Market terms 1,805 (1,352) 1,805 22

aitken spence Printing related company Printing and Market terms 830 – 830 –
and Packaging (Pvt) ltd.  typesetting hotel
   promotional
   literature and
   annual report

ace International related company Mail/courier Market terms 142  – 142 –
express (Pvt) ltd.  charges

aitken spence hotels related company sale of hotel rooms Market terms 16 – 16 –
ltd. 

Golden sun resorts related company sale of hotel rooms Market terms 17 – 17 –
(Pvt) ltd.

Distilleries company related company Purchased of Food  Market terms 72 – 72 –
of sri lanka Plc

lanka Bell Plc. related company Provision of  Market terms 60 – 60 –
   telecommunication
   services

negombo Beach subsidiary Project Funding Market terms – – 414,187 790,525
resorts (Pvt) ltd.

 Mr. D.h.s. Jayawardena chairman of the company is also the chairman of aitken spence Plc, and negombo Beach 
resorts (Pvt) ltd and the chairman of Distilleries company of sri lanka Plc, and lanka Bell (Pvt) ltd.
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 Mr. J.M.s. Brito, Director of the company is also the Managing & Finance Director of aitken spence Plc.

 Mr. s.M hapugoda a Director of the company is also a Director of aitken spence hotel Managements (Pvt) 
ltd., aitken spence hotels ltd. and Golden sun resorts (Pvt) ltd.

 related party disclosures should be read in conjunction with note no. 14 and note no. 20.

 25.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel
 Browns Beach hotels Plc, considers its Board of Directors as the Key Management Personnel 

of the company.
 there were no transactions with Key Management Personnel and their close family members 

during the year, which require disclose as per lKas 24 - related Party disclosures. employment 
benefits of Key Management Personnel are as detailed below:.

Year ended 31st March  Group Company
 In thousands of Rs.  2014 2013 2014 2013      
 short term employment benefits  – – – –
 Post employment benefits  – – – –

26. SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
 the Management believes that it is not practical to provide segmental disclosures relating to 

segment costs and expenses and consequently segment profits and losses, since a realistic allocation 
cannot be made. the fixed assets used in the company’s business are not identifiable to any 
particular reportable segment and can be used interchangeably among segments. consequently the 
Management believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosure relating to total assets 
since a realistic analysis among the various operating segments is not possible.

27. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS
 the project for constructing a new resort hotel in the existing hotel compound is undertaken by 

negombo Beach resorts (Pvt) ltd. which is a 100% owned subsidiary of Browns Beach hotels Plc. 
the total project cost is estimated to be in the region of rs. 4.0 Billion.

 there are no other capital expenditure commitments to the financial statements.

28. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
 there has been no material events occurred since the date of the statement of financial position 

which require adjustment to, or disclosure in the financial statements of Browns Beach hotels Plc.

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
 there were no significant contingent liabilities as at reporting date.

30. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
 Browns Beach hotels Plc, does not have an identifiable parent of its own.

31. AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
 the average number of employees as at 31st March 2014 amounts to 11 ( 2012/13-07)

32. COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
 the presentation and classification of financial statements of the comparative year has been amended 

where relevant, to be comparable with those of the current year.

 other than the above no comparative information was changed during the year which require 
disclosure or adjustments in the financial statements.

33. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
 the Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED

  2013/2014  2012/2013  2011/2012  2010/2011  2009/2010          
In thousands of Rs.  %  %  %  %  %

total revenue –  –  –  317,837  250,407
Purchase of goods & services (11,082)  (9,776)  (18,229)  (170,841)   (169,975)          
 (11,082)  (9,776)  (18,229)  146,996  80,432
other income 165,379  281,880  209,915  62,831  5,218             
Total value added 154,297  272,104  191,686  209,827  85,650           
Distributed as follows
To government
(Income tax)  43,117 28 75,892 28  53,120 28 846 – 3,909 5
To employees
(salaries & other) 17,049 11 7,593 3 9,029 5 94,523 45 56,790 66
To lenders of capital
(Interest on loan capital) – – – – – – – – – –
Retained for reinvestment
 & future growth
(Depreciation, impairment loss
 & retained profits) 94,131 61 188,619 69 129,537 68 114,458 55 24,951 29          
  154,297 100 272,104 100 191,686 100 209,827 100 85,650 100          

Value added per ordinary share (rs) 1.19 2.10  1.48 1.62 8.92
  
Value added is a measure of wealth created. the statement above shows the Group’s value added from 
2009/10 to 2013/14 and its distribution by way of payments to employees, government and to those 
who have provided capital. It also indicates the portion retained in the business.
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SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR INFORMATION

1. Stock Exchange Listing
 Browns Beach hotels Plc, is a Public Quoted company, the issued ordinary shares of which have 

been listed with the colombo stock exchange.

2. Shareholders
 there were 2,343 registered shareholders as at 31.03.2014 distributed as follows:

  range no. of shareholders no. of shares %

  1 to 1,000 shares 1,559  411,294 0.32
  1,001 to 10,000 shares 627 2,102,020 1.63
  10,001 to 100,000 shares 130 3,667,353 2.83
  100,001 to 1,000,000 shares 22 6,322,056 4.87 
  1,000,001 & above shares 05 117,097,277 90.35
  TOTAL 2,343 129,600,000 100.00

3. Shareholder and Investor Information
 1. Category
   31.03.2014 31.03.2013
    No of Shares % No of Shares %
 Nationals   126,847,563 97.88 128,431,235 99.10
 Non-Nationals   2,752,437 2.12 1,168,765 0.90       
 Total issued share capital   129,600,000 100.00 129,600,000 100.00       

 2. Category

     Shareholding  %  Shareholding  %
 Individuals   8,355,355 6.45 9,521,625 7.35
 Other Institutions   121,244,645 93.55 120,078,375  92.65       
 Total issued share capital   129,600,000 100.00 129,600,000 100.00       

 * Percentage of the shares held by the public as at 31st March, 2014 was 9.20%

 4. Share Trading
  2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012 2010/2011

 number of shares traded during the year 9,361,753  70,383,264 5 ,562,623 6,451,000 
 Value of shares traded during the year (rs.) 186,402,473 1,114,937,686 99,391,043 291,505,755

 number of transactions 4,997 9,978 4 ,787 6,427

90%

2%
5%

3%

1-10,000

10,001-100,000

100,001-1,000,000

1,000,001 & Above

Distribution of Shareholding
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 5. Ratios
  2013/2014 2012/2013 2011/2012
 earnings/(Deficit) per share (rs.) 0.72 1.45 0.99
 Price earnings ratio 26.38 11.87 14.74
 net assets per share (rs.) 27.57  26.86 25.43

 6. Market Value
 Financial Year  Highest Lowest Year-End
  (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)

 2009 - 2010  73.00 62.00 72.50
 2010 - 2011 Pre sub division period 120.00 72.00 – 
  Post sub division period 25.80 20.00 21.30
 2011 - 2012  21.80 13.70 14.60
 2012 - 2013  32.00 11.80 17.20
 2013 - 2014  22.50 16.30 19.00

 7. Market Capitalization as at 31st March 
 In thousands of Rs. Capital & Reserves Market Capitalization

 2010 519,928 696,000
 2011 2,690,363 2,760,480
 2012 3,295,881 1,892,160
 2013 3,481,555 2,229,120
 2014 3,572,746 2,462,400

 8. Twenty largest Shareholders as at 31st March, 2014
 Name No. of Shares %

1. Melstacorp limited  54,273,234 41.877
2. aitken spence hotel holdings Plc 47,455,750 36.617
3. stassen exports limited 12,730,620 9.823
4. elgin Investments limited 1,387,699 1.071
5. lanka Milk Food (cwe) limited 1,251,558 0.965
6. h. w. M. woodward 1,000,000 0.772
7. Milford exports (ceylon) (Pvt) limited 768,960 0.593
8. nDB capital holdings Plc 434,389 0.335
9. aitken spence hotels limited 432,459 0.334
10. heritance (Private) limited 432,444 0.334
11. F .a .a. Mack 358,000 0.276
12. a. sithampalam 312,940 0.241
13. Kandalama hotels ltd 306,450 0.236
14. Merchant Bank of sri lanka a/c no. 1 210,291 0.163
15. Merchant credit of sri lanka limited 200,521 0.156
16. employee Provident Fund 200,000 0.154
17. c. t. rodrigo 200,000 0.154
18. P.a. anil 182,710 0.141
19. B.G executive staff Provident association 182,520 0.141
20. e.e. Mack 175,000 0.135    

   122,495,545 94.52    
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DECADE AT A GLANCE

Year ended 31st March 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
In thousands of Rs.

revenue – – – 317,837 250,407 233,411 252,597 179,304 145,762 144,046

Profit/(loss) before taxation 136,366 263,636 181,729 (925) 21,571 1,007 28,060 (5,794) 8,435 (5,842)

Income tax expense (43,117) (75,892) (53,120) (846) (3,909) 789 (8,057) 261 (1,060) (591)

Profit/(loss) after taxation 93,249 187,744 128,609 (1,771) 17,662 218 2,003 (5,533) 7,375 (6,433)

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

stated capital 2,383,449 2,383,449 2,383,449 199,449 199,449 199,449 199,449 199,449 199,449 199,449

reserves 1,189,297 1,098,106 912,432 308,066 320,479 302,817 302,599 282,596 (1,871) (9,246) 

LIABILITIES

current liabilities 12,127 26,295 54,449 39,624 73,928 66,136 76,965 72,695 120,639 60,859

non current liabilities 471 695 518 1,618 14,153 12,030 11,290 4,608 5,032 7,838

ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 2,536,602 1,638,371 985,825  385,012 520,372 510,095 502,863 503,753 218,494 226,556

Deferred tax asset 26 79 60 243 – – – – – –

current assets 1,048,716 1,869,577 2,364,455 2,732,757 87,637 70,337 87,440 55,595 104,755 32,341

Ratios

return on average 
 shareholders’ funds (%) 2.61 5.54 4.30 (0.07) 3.46 0.04 4.06 (1.63) 3.80 (3.33)

Debt equity ratio – – – – – – – – – 0.02

Interest cover (times) – – – – – – – (45.35) 7.86 (0.17)
 
Share Information

earnings/(loss) per 
 ordinary share (rs.) 0.72 1.45 0.99 (0.04) 0.58* 0.02 2.08 (0.58) 0.77 (0.67)

net assets per 
 ordinary share (rs.) 27.57 26.86 25.43 20.76 4.01* 52.32 50.24 50.24 20.58 19.81

* adjusted for right issue and subsequent subdivision of shares.
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GLOSSARY

DEBT/EqUITY RATIO
 long-term liabilities divided by the total of 

shareholders Interest.

INTEREST COVER RATIO
 Profit before Interest and taxation divided 

by total Interest.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
 the total of share capital, capital reserves 

and revenue reserves, after adjusting for 
deferred expenditure.

RETURN ON SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
 Profit after tax divided by average 

shareholders’ funds.

NET ASSETS PER ORDINARY SHARE
 total assets less total liabilities divided by 

the number of ordinary shares in issue as at 
31st March.

EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE
 Profit after tax, divided by the weighted 

average number of ordinary shares in issue 
throughout the year.

MARKET VALUE PER SHARE
 the Price at which an ordinary share is
 purchased in the stock market at the year 

end.

PRICE EARNINGS RATIO
 Market Price per share divided by earnings 

per share.

MARKET CAPITALISATION
 the number of ordinary shares in issue 

multiplied by the market price per share.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
 the total of additions to property, plant and 

equipment.

CAPITAL RESERVES
 reserves identified for specific purposes and 

considered not available for distribution.

CASH EqUIVALENTS
 highly liquid investments that are readily 

convertible to known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value.
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First half of August 2014

Interim statements for the first quarter ended 30th June 2014

30th September 2014

twenty second annual General Meeting

First half of November 2014

Interim statements for the second quarter ended 30th september 2014

First half of February 2015

Interim statements for third quarter ended 31st December 2014

First half of May 2015

Interim statements for the fourth quarter ended 31st March 2015
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FORM OF PROXY

I/we  .........................................................................................................................................................................
of  ...............................................................................................................................................................................  
being a member/members of Browns Beach Hotels PLC hereby appoint 
....................................................................................................................................................................................
of ..................................................................................................................................................... (whom failing)
Don harold stassen Jayawardena of colombo (whom failing)

Manickam Vallipuram theagarajah of colombo (whom failing)

Joseph Michael suresh Brito of colombo (whom failing)

srilal Malin hapugoda of colombo (whom failing)

thammahettimudalige Don Upul Dharmapriya Peiris of colombo (whom failing)

amitha lal Gooneratne of colombo

as my/our Proxy to represent me/us to speak and to vote for me/us and on my /our behalf at the 
annual General Meeting of the company to be held on the 30th september 2014 and at any adjournment 
thereof and at every poll which may be taken in consequence thereof.

signed this……………………………..day of…………………….two thousand and Fourteen.

 Signatures .................................................

Note: Instructions as to completion are noted on the reverse hereof.
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INSTRUCTION AS TO COMPLETION

1. Kindly perfect the form of proxy by filling in legibly your full name and address, signing in the 

space provided and filling in the date of signature.

2. If the proxy form is signed by an attorney, the relative power of attorney should also accompany 

the proxy form for registration, if such power of attorney has not already been registered with the 

company.

3. In the case of a company/corporation, the proxy must be under its common seal (if required) 

which should be affixed and attested in the manner prescribed by its articles of association.

4. the completed form of proxy should be deposited with the secretaries of the company at their 

office, no.315, Vauxhall street, colombo 2 before 3.30 p.m on 28th september 2014 being 48 hours 

before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting.






